
 
 
 

Mrs J Wallace 
Head of Paid Service 
Torridge District Council 
Riverbank House 
Bideford 
Devon 
EX39 2QG 
 
DX 53606 BIDEFORD 
Tel : Bideford (01237) 428700 

 

 

 

 
Date: 6 September 2019 

 

FULL COUNCIL MEETING 
 

On: Monday 16 September 2019 At: 6.30 pm 

Venue: Town Hall - Bridge Street, Bideford, EX39 2HS 

 
NOTICE OF MEETING 

 
You are hereby summoned to the Meeting of the District Council at the aforementioned date and time 

 

 
 

Head of Paid Service  

 

To: Councillor D Brenton (Chair) 
Councillor P Christie (Vice-Chair) 
Councillors: R Boughton, C Bright, M Brown, D Bushby, M Clarke, C Cottle-
Hunkin, R Craigie, A Dart, L Ford, J Gubb, P Hackett, P Hames, S Harding, 
C Hawkins, K Hepple, R Hicks, C Hodson, D Hurley, J Hutchings, T Inch, 
K James, D Jones, S Langford, N Laws, C Leather, R Lock, J Manley, 
D McGeough, J McKenzie, S Newton, P Pennington, G Rossi, P Watson and 
R Wiseman 

 
Members are requested to turn off their mobile phones for the duration of the meeting 

 

AGENDA 
PART I - (OPEN SESSION) 

  

1.   Apologies For Absence  

 To receive apologies for absence from the meeting 
 

2.   Council Minutes (Pages 3 - 9) 

 Confirmation of the Minutes of the Meeting of the Council held on 1 July 2019. 
 



 
 

 

3.   Public Contributions  

 15 minute period for public contributions 
 

4.   Declarations of interest  

 Members with interests to declare should refer to the Agenda item and describe the 
nature of their interest when the item is being discussed. 
 

5.   Agreement of Agenda Items Part I and II  

6.   To consider correspondence or other business especially brought forward by 
the direction of the Chair  

7.   To answer questions submitted under Procedural Rule A9  

8.   Treasury Management Report (Pages 10 - 16) 

 To receive the report of the Strategic Manager (Resources) 
 

9.   Hotsw Joint Committee Governance Review Report (Pages 17 - 36) 

 To receive the report of the Head of Paid Service 
 

10.   Constitution Working Group  

 To receive a verbal update 
 

11.   Petitions  

 To receive petitions (if any) 
 

12.   Notices of Motion  

13.   Exclusion of Public  

 The Chair to move: 
 
“That the public be excluded from the remainder of the meeting because of the likely 
disclosure of exempt information as defined in Schedule 12A of the Local 
Government Act 1972” 
 

14.   PART II - (CLOSED SESSION)  

  
Items which may be taken in the absence of the public and press on the grounds that 
exempt information may be disclosed. 
 

 Meeting Organiser: Democratic Services 
 

 Centre for Public Scrutiny – website            http://www.cfps.org.uk/ 
 

 

http://www.cfps.org.uk/


1 
 

 
 

TORRIDGE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

MEETING OF THE COUNCIL 
 

Town Hall - Bridge Street, Bideford, EX39 2HS 
 

Monday, 1 July 2019 - 6.30 pm 
 

PRESENT: Councillor D Brenton (Chair) 
Councillor P Christie (Vice-Chair) 
 

 Councillors R Boughton, C Bright, D Bushby, M Clarke, C Cottle-
Hunkin, R Craigie, A Dart, L Ford, J Gubb, P Hackett, P Hames, 
S Harding, C Hawkins, R Hicks, C Hodson, J Hutchings, T Inch, 
K James, D Jones, S Langford, C Leather, R Lock, J Manley, 
D McGeough, J McKenzie, S Newton, P Pennington, G Rossi 
and P Watson 

 
ALSO PRESENT: C Norman, Solicitor 

J Wallace, Head of Paid Service 
S Hearse, Strategic Manager (Resources) 
S Cawsey, Democratic Services Officer 
M Richards, Democratic Services Officer 
 

 Mr Harper – Non-elected Member 
 
29 Members of the Public 
 

 
1.    APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  

 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Brown, Hepple, Hurley, 
Laws and Wiseman.  
 

2.    COUNCIL MINUTES  
 
It was proposed by Councillor Brenton, seconded by Councillor Inch and - 
 
Resolved:   That the minutes of the meeting held on 8 April be confirmed as a 
correct record and signed by the Chair. 
 
(Vote: For 13, Abstentions 18)  
 
Matters Arising 
 
Item 78 (2) Written Notice of Motion from Councillor Whittaker  
 
Councillor Hicks had asked for old minutes relating to the implications report 
process to be circulated.  To date he had heard nothing. 
 

Page 3

Agenda Item 2



2 
 

 
 

The Head of Paid Service responded that the Notice of Motion had been referred to 
the Plans Committee and was on the agenda for the next meeting.   
 
Officers had researched the history and in the past it had been used; then there 
had been a period where the process had not been used and then more recently it 
had been reintroduced. 
 
The Head of Paid Service will ensure that any report will be made available to all 
Members. 
 
It was proposed by Councillor Brenton, seconded by Councillor Lock and - 
 
Resolved:   That the minutes of the meeting held on 13 May be confirmed as a 
correct record and signed by the Chair. 
 
(Vote: For 30, Abstentions 1) 
 
Matters Arising 
 
Appointment to Programme Board 
 
Councillor Christie asked whether there had been any progress on the setting up of 
a Member Asset Management Working Group. 
 
The Leader of the Council advised that this was a priority issue which was being 
addressed and it was a matter of priority. 
 

3.    PUBLIC CONTRIBUTIONS  
 
Fiona Gibbon called for the Council to recognise climate emergency.  She referred 
to the Government’s plans to reduce carbon emissions by 80% by 2050 but stated 
that this was far too late, warning of the profound and potentially terminal 
consequences if we do not tackle the issue now. She urged all 3 tiers of Local 
Government to work together, to listen to and work with the experts 
 
Mr Ian Godfrey of 361 Energy spoke of the work his organisation was carrying out 
in Torridge, promoting energy saving and renewable energy.  They had worked with 
households in Torridge to address fuel poverty and had been involved in the 
installation of the solar panels at Pollyfield.  Further sites had been identified in 
Bideford which would benefit from solar panels.  Mr Godfrey  appealed to the 
Council to adopt a climate emergency strategy for Bideford to be carbon neutral by 
2030. 
 
May Iris Corfe implored Members to “act today and declare a climate emergency”. 
 

4.    DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
The Chair reminded Members that declarations of interest should be made as and 
 when the specific agenda item to which they related was under discussion. 
 

Page 4



3 
 

 
 

Councillor Inch declared an interest – dual hatted - Member of Devon County 
Council. 
 

5.    AGREEMENT OF AGENDA ITEMS PART I AND II  
 
There were no Part II items. 
 
The Chair proposed that the report by the Head of Paid Service on Climate 
Emergency and the Notice of Motion  brought by Councillors Christie, Hames and 
Hawkins be moved up the agenda. 
 
(Vote: For 31, Against 1) 
 

6.    CLIMATE CHANGE  
 
The Head of Paid Service briefed Members on the County wide activities following 
DCC’s declaration of a “Climate Emergency”.   TDC had been working with DCC, 
other public bodies and the other Devon District Councils to agree to sign up to a 
Devon Climate Declaration.   A number of meetings had already been held which 
the Head of Paid Service had dialled into.   
 
It was noted that TDC already had a Carbon Management Programme in place. 
This now needed to be updated.  Measures to reduce TDC’s carbon footprint had 
included solar panels on the roof at Riverbank House offices, the introduction of 
electric car charging points on various sites, energy efficiencies within TDC owned 
buildings and the improved Waste & Recycling service. 
 
A substantial amount of money had been put forward by DCC and grant funding 
was being sought to assist the Devon authorities.  Furthermore, a Project Manager 
will be made available too all to ensure a consistent approach. 
 
The purpose of the report had been to advise Members of the Devon wide 
collaboration and to determine whether Members wished to sign up to the Devon 
Climate Declaration.  Detail could then be discussed and a working group could be 
established. 
 
It was proposed by Councillor Brenton and seconded by Councillor Inch -  
 
That: 
 
The significant action that TDC has taken to date in reducing its own carbon 
footprint and the wider collaborative activities that TDC is involved in at the current 
time be noted. 
 
(Vote: For 27, Abstentions 4) 
 
Clarification was provided by the Head of Paid Service regarding the second 
recommendation in the report.  This had been included as DCC was looking at a 
target date of 2050, rather than 2030 as required by the Notice of Motion.  The 
target date was debated and particular reference was made to the 

Page 5



4 
 

 
 

Intergovernmental Panel on Climate Change’s warning that we have 12 years to 
limit climate change to avoid a catastrophe. 
 
A further discussion took place around responsibilities and lifestyle changes. 
 
It was proposed by Councillor Dart, seconded by Councillor Brenton and – 
 
Resolved: 
 
That TDC declare its own “Climate Emergency” with a commitment to carbon 
neutrality by 2030 at the latest. 
 
(Vote: For 24, Against 5, Abstentions 2) 
 
It was proposed by Councillor Brenton and seconded by Councillor Christie –  
That: 
 
Preparations be made to sign up to the Devon Climate Change Emergency (subject 
to formal approval) which will commit TDC to updating the Carbon Management 
Plan for Torridge. 
 
The recommendation was considered.  Concerns were raised as follows: 
 

 A caveat should be included that TDC had agreed to a target date of 2030 

 The Agricultural Industry should be consulted – The Head of Paid Service 
will take this back to the Devon Climate Emergency Response Group 

 Would the targets be index linked? – The Head of Paid Service will take this 
back to the Devon Climate Emergency Response Group 

 
(Vote: For 27, Against 3, Abstentions 1) 
 

7.    WRITTEN NOTICE OF MOTION FROM COUNCILLORS CHRISTIE, HAMES 
AND HAWKINS  
 
Written Notice of Motion from Councillors Christie, Hames and Hawkins 
 
That TDC declares a “Climate Emergency” and pledges to make the Council 
carbon neutral by 2030 as part of a Devon-wide carbon reduction plan being 
organised by Devon County Council.    Additionally the Council will protect and 
promote biodiversity throughout Torridge as part of this.  Six monthly reports on 
progress achieved to be presented to Full Council from December 2019. 
 
Councillor Christie presented the Notice of Motion.  
 
It was suggested that the Notice of Motion should be considered in 2 parts as no 
information had been provided relating to biodiversity. 
 
Councillor Hames, Lead Member for Climate Change, shared some of the main 
points from a statement he had prepared on climate change and biodiversity loss in 
the UK.  A drastic decline in biodiversity had been experienced in the UK since the 

Page 6



5 
 

 
 

Second World War and the UK had one of the worst records of biodiversity loss in 
the world: 
 

 60% decrease in the number of birds 

 A decline in insect populations 

 A 70% decline in butterfly numbers and 2/3 decline in moth species 

 Habitat loss - 75,000 miles of hedges had disappeared 

 Farming practices, use of pesticides, housing and other development, road 
building were influencing factors, alongside climate change 

 
The Lead Member confirmed that action to promote biodiversity was incredibly 
important in the face of climate change.  Local authorities could work with building 
regulations and planning systems and specify more rigorous energy conservation 
requirements and biodiversity related to housing and other developments. 
 
It was proposed by Councillor Craigie and seconded by Councillor Rossi –  
 
That the Motion be amended to: 
 
That TDC declare a “Climate Emergency” and pledge to make the Council carbon 
neutral by 2030 as part of a Devon-wide carbon reduction plan being organised by 
Devon County Council and that a working group be set up and reporting 
commence with immediate effect.  Additionally the Council will protect and 
promote biodiversity throughout Torridge as part of this.  Six monthly reports on 
progress achieved to be presented to Full Council from December 2019. 
 
It was proposed by Councillor Jones and seconded by Councillor McGeough - 
 
That: 
 
The part of the Motion relating to biodiversity be considered separately. 
 
It was proposed by Councillor James and seconded by Councillor Hutchings – 
 
That: 
 
TDC declares a “Climate Emergency” and pledges to make the Council carbon 
neutral by 2030 as part of a Devon-wide carbon reduction plan being organised by 
Devon County Council.   
 
A decision on biodiversity throughout Torridge be deferred until a 
programme could be put forward. 
 
Councillor Christie agreed to amend the Motion as above. 
 
A vote was taken on the proposal by Councillor Craigie and seconded by Councillor 
Rossi –  
 
That the Motion be amended to: 
 

Page 7



6 
 

 
 

That TDC declare a “Climate Emergency” and pledge to make the Council carbon 
neutral by 2030 as part of a Devon-wide carbon reduction plan being organised by 
Devon County Council and that a working group be set up and reporting commence 
with immediate effect.  Additionally the Council will protect and promote biodiversity 
throughout Torridge as part of this.   
 
(Vote: For 28, Against 3) 
 
The motion was carried. 
 
A vote was taken on the proposal by Councillor James and seconded by Councillor 
Hutchings – 
 
That: 
 
TDC declare a “Climate Emergency” and pledge to make the Council carbon 
neutral by 2030 as part of a Devon-wide carbon reduction plan being organised by 
Devon County Council.   
 
A decision on biodiversity throughout Torridge be deferred until a programme could 
be put forward. 
 
(Vote: For 22, Against 9) 
 

8.    TO CONSIDER CORRESPONDENCE OR OTHER BUSINESS ESPECIALLY 
BROUGHT FORWARD BY THE DIRECTION OF THE CHAIR  
 
The Chair advised of the proposed closure of Appledore Fire Station.  
 
The Ward Members for Appledore spoke in more detail about the service, bespoke 
vehicles and previous closure proposals. 
 
It was proposed by the Chair – 
 
That: 
 
The Council’s opposition to the proposed closure of Appledore Fire Station be 
ratified by the Community & Resources Committee and that the MP be copied in on 
the communication to the Fire Authority. 
 
(Vote: For 26, Abstentions 5) 
 
Councillor Pennington proposed that Councillor Eastman of DCC be invited to a 
future meeting to speak on the matter. 
 
 
 

9.    TO ANSWER QUESTIONS SUBMITTED UNDER PROCEDURAL RULE A9  
 
There were no questions submitted under Procedural Rule A9. 

Page 8



7 
 

 
 

 
10.    LEAD MEMBERS  

 
Councillor James presented the report. 
 
Councillor Hutchings declared an interest as he is a trustee of one of the bodies. 
 
It was proposed by Councillor James, seconded by Councillor Watson and -  
 
Resolved: 
 
That the Lead Members and Membership of outside Bodies be approved. 
 
(Vote: For – unanimous) 
 

11.    WRITTEN NOTICE OF MOTION FROM COUNCILLOR FORD  
 
Written Notice of Motion from Councillor L S Ford 

 
That the constitution be amended so that any Councillor can only serve as the 
Chair of Plans for a maximum of four consecutive years. Any Councillor who has 
served as Chair of Plans for four years cannot do so again for a four year period. 
 
Councillor Ford presented the Notice of Motion.  During the debate which followed, 
consideration was given to: 
 

 Training for Plans Committee 

 Whether the Motion should apply to all committees 
 
It was proposed by Councillor Ford and seconded by Councillor Manley –  
 
That: 
 
The Notice of Motion be referred to the Constitution Working Group. 
 
(Vote: For 20, Against 9, Abstentions 2) 
 

12.    PETITIONS  
 
There were no petitions. 
 

 
 
The meeting commenced at 6.30 pm and closed at 8.15 pm. 
 
 
Chair:  Date: 

Page 9



REPORT OF  Strategic Manager – Resources 
 
To:   Full Council 
 
Subject:  Annual Report on Treasury Management 2018-19 
 
Date:   5th August 2019 
 
   
 
 
 
 

1. INTRODUCTION 
The Council has adopted the CIPFA Code of Practice in Treasury Management in the 
Public Sector, which requires that a report should be presented on Treasury 
Management activity for the previous financial year.  This report also includes the 
actual Prudential Indicators for the year. 

 
2. REPORT 

 
Background 
The Council operates its treasury management service in compliance with the code 
and other statutory requirements. These require that the prime objective of the treasury 
management activity is the effective management of risk, and that borrowing activity is 
undertaken on a prudent, affordable and sustainable basis. 

 
Performance for the year 2018/19 
The Bank of England Base Rate increased to 0.75% on the 2nd August 2018.  

 
The average rate of return achieved by the Council on its short term investments was 
0.85% which compared with 0.55% in 2017/18. 

 
The return from short term investments in 2018/19 was £113k, which compared with a 
return of £78k in 2017/18. 

 
As at the 31st March 2019 the Council had short term investments of £10m lodged with 
financial institutions, the comparable figure for the 31st March 2018 being £12m. 

 
During 2018/19 the Council repaid £191k of long term Public Loans Board debt, the 
balance outstanding at the close of 2018/19 being £952k. 

 
The Prudential indicators for the year are attached at Appendix 1. 
 
Local Loans – TM Policy update (Appendix 2) 
 
The Council sets a limit for loans for local economic development at £250,000. 
 

 
 

PURPOSE OF REPORT: 
To report on the treasury management activity in the year and actual prudential indicators for  
2018/19. 

Page 10

Agenda Item 8



3. Implications 
 

Legal Implications 
 

 There are no specific legal implications 
 
 Financial Implications 
 
 All treasury management activity carries a level of risk, but adherence to the approved 

strategy minimises this. However, minimising risk needs to be balanced with the 
income generated and the expenditure incurred through treasury management 
activities.  

 
 The Council’s treasury strategy can be best summarised in order of priority as  

  

 Security of investment 

 Liquidity 

 Return on investment. 
 

The Council employs Link Asset Services as its external Treasury advisors. 
 
Human Resource Implications 
 
There are no specific substantiality implications 
 
Equality / Diversity 
 
There are no specific equality / Diversity issues 
 
Risk Management 
 
The risk that borrowers may default is minimised by adherence to the Treasury 
Management Strategy, the credit rating of counter parties being checked prior to 
making the investments, all financial institutions with which the Council contracts are 
UK registered and have a Fitch F1 rating.  
 
 
Compliance with Policies and Strategies 
 
The report fits in within the Council’s Treasury Management framework. 
 

  

Page 11



Lead Member View 
 
Date of Consultation 5th September 2019 - Councillor Hodson 
 
Torridge District Council has fulfilled it’s obligations in accordance with Treasury Management 
Code of Practice. The Prudential Indicators show the impact on the Council’s financial position 
and provide re-assurance that risks are being managed and activity has been undertaken 
within agreed limits.   
 
 

4. CONCLUSIONS 
 

Returns on the Council’s investments remain low, as the Bank of England has 
maintained its policy of low interest rates. 
 
 

5. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

To comply with the requirements of the CIPFA Code of Practice in Treasury 
Management in the public sector; Members are asked: 
 

 To note the Treasury Management Report for 2018/19 

 To note the actual Prudential Indicators for 2018/19 

 To approve the update to the TM Policy for Local Loans (appendix 2) – setting 
the limit for Local loans at £250,000. 

 
 
 

Page 12



          APPENDIX 1 
 
PRUDENTIAL INDICATORS 2018/19 
 
1. The Prudential code was introduced in response to the Local Government Act 2003; it 

requires Prudential Indicators in relation to Treasury Management and the Capital 
Programme to be reported to members at the end of each financial year. These indicators 
are set out in the in succeeding paragraphs in the format required by the Code, which at 
times is extremely technical. 
 

2. Capital Expenditure  
 
The actual capital expenditure and sources of financing in 2018/19 were: 

 

Capital Expenditure 2017/18 2018/19 2018/19 

 

Actual Estimate Actual 

 

£'000 £'000 £'000 

Total Programme 2,172 13,542 4,005 

 less 
  

 Grants & Contributions -744 -2,064 -854 

Revenue Contributions -1,098 -6,478 -2,542 

Capital Receipts -330 -1,000 -609 

Net Financed from Internal borrowing 0 4,000 0 

 
 

*The New Depot has been delayed until future years, £4m of external borrowing has been 
approved for the Depot. New refuse recycling vehicles were purchased in 2018/19 (April 18). 

 
3. Capital Financing Requirement  

 
The Capital Financing Requirement (CFR) is the underlying need to use borrowing or leasing 
to provide capital assets. This is calculated from the balance sheet: 
 

Capital Financing Requirement 2017/18 2018/19 2018/19 

 

Actual Estimate Actual 

 

£'000 £'000 £'000 

Total 1,172 1,125 1,125 
 
* £4m of external borrowing relating to the new Depot has been delayed until 2019/20. 

 
4. The Prudential Code includes the following as a key indicator of prudence: 
 

“In order to ensure that over the medium term net borrowing will only be for a capital 
purpose, the local authority should ensure that net external borrowing does not, except in 
the short term, exceed the total of the capital financing requirement in the preceding year 
plus the estimates of any additional capital financing requirement for the current and next 
two financial years”. 

  

Page 13



Net Borrowing 2017/18 2018/19 2018/19 

 

Actual Estimate Actual 

 

£'000 £'000 £'000 

Borrowing 1,155 4,964 964 

Investments -12,001 -12,001 -10,001 

Net Borrowing -10,846 -7,037 -9,037 

 
 
The above table clearly shows that the Council’s net borrowing is significantly less that the 
Capital Financing Requirement as shown in 3, thus confirming that borrowing was for capital 
purposes only. 
 

5. Authorised Limit for External Debt 
 
This limit represents the maximum amount that Torridge may borrow at any given time 
during the year.  The Authorised limit for the Council in 2018/19 was £5,764k; Members are 
asked to note that Authorised Limit determined for 2018/19 was the statutory limit 
determined under Section 31 of the Local Government Act 2003.  No additional borrowing 
was undertaken during 2018/19. 
 

6. Operational Boundary 
 
The operational boundary sets the limit for short term borrowing requirements for cash flow 
and has to be lower than the previous indicator (the authorised limit for external debt). A 
ceiling of £1,965k has been set. 
 
The operational boundary represents a key management tool for in year monitoring. As 
noted in paragraph 5 there was no requirement to undertake additional borrowing during 
the year. 
 
Operational Boundary for External 
Debt 

2018/19 2018/19 

 

Estimate Actual 

 

£'000 £'000 

Borrowing 5,965 1,965 

 
 
* £4m of external borrowing relating to the new Depot has been delayed until 2019/20. 
 

 
7. Ratio of Financing Costs to Net Revenue Stream  

 
This indicator shows the proportion of the Council’s budget (i.e. the costs it has to meet 
from government grants and local taxation), that is required to meet the costs associated 
with capital financing (interest and principal, net of interest received).  
 
Ratio of Financing Costs to Net 
Revenue   

2017/18 2018/19 2018/19 

            Stream Actual Estimate Actual 

 

£'000 £'000 £'000 

Financing Costs 56,255 132,018 23,370 

Page 14



Net Revenue Stream 10,307,000 9,384,000 10,307,447 

Ratio of Financing Costs 0.55% 1.41% 0.23% 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 

8. Band D Council Tax 
 
The incremental impact of financing costs on the Council is detailed below: 

 
                                                                                    2018/19                     2018/19 
                                                                                    Estimate                      Actual                                                                              

sssssssssssssssssssssss 

 

 

 

 

            Annual impact from previous year  for       £ 3.22                       -£1.40           
            Band D Equivalent 
 

The impact of the reduction in net financing costs when spread across the 23,552 band D 
equivalent properties in the Borough equates to -£1.40 per property per annum. 

 
9. Exposure to Fixed and Variable Rates of Interest 

 
The Council must set limits to contain the activity of the treasury function within certain 
limits. All of the councils borrowing and investment in 2018/19 were at fixed interest rates.    
Consequently the Council did not have any exposure to the variable interest rates in line 
with its treasury management strategy. 
 

10. Maturity Structure of Fixed Rates Borrowing 
 
The Council sets upper and lower limits for the maturity structure of its borrowing. The 
table below details the boundaries for the maturity of outstanding borrowing compared to 
actual.  As an aid to comprehension the Council has set an upper boundary for borrowing 
becoming due for redemption with 12 months of 60%; at the close of the financial year 
2018/19 - £138k was due for redemption within 12 months, representing 14% of the total 
outstanding borrowing. All borrowing relates to loans from the PWLB. 
 

   

2018/19 

 

Lower Target 
Upper 
Target 

Actual 

Under 12 months 0% 60% 14% 

12 months and within 24 months 0% 10% 16% 

24 and within 5 years 20% 40% 33% 

5 years and within 10 years 30% 50% 36% 

10 years and above 10% 30% 0% 

 
      
      
      

 

Page 15



APPENDIX 2 

POLICY ON LOCAL LOANS 
 
 
1.0 BACKGROUND 
 

Local authorities may make loans to local enterprises, local charities, wholly owned 
companies and joint ventures as part of a wider strategy for local economic growth.  
 
Such loans should be included in the council’s treasury management strategy. 
 

 
2.0 GUIDANCE ON LOANS 
 

MHCLG Guidance states that any such loans should be encapsulated within the 
Treasury Management Strategy: 
 
Local authorities can make such loans whilst continuing to have regard to this 
guidance if they can demonstrate in their Strategy that: 
 

• Total financial exposure to these type of loans is proportionate; 
 
• They have used an allowed “expected credit loss” model for loans and 

receivables as set out in International Financial Reporting Standard (IFRS) 9 
Financial Instruments as adopted by proper practices to measure the credit 
risk of their loan portfolio; 

 
• They have appropriate credit control arrangements to recover overdue 

repayments in place; and 
 
• The local authority has formally agreed the total level of loans by type that it 

is willing to make and their total loan book is within their self-assessed limit.”   
 

 
3.0 TORRIDGE DISTRICT COUNCIL LOCAL LOAN POLICY 

 
The Council can approve loans to the following on a proportionate basis: 

 Local enterprises 

 Local Charities 

 Wholly owned companies 

 Joint Ventures 
 
The Council considers the “expected credit loss” model for any new loans, before 
they are approved, and the Council’s general credit control arrangements are 
adhered to for any overdue payments. 
 
The Council sets the total limit for loans at £250,000. 
 
Note: This limit is separate to the Revolving loan fund to CLT’s (£600,000) 

 

Page 16



 
  

REPORT OF Head of Paid Service 

To: Full Council 

Subject: Hotsw Joint Committee Governance Review Report 

Date: 16 September 2019   

 
 

PURPOSE OF REPORT:     

To provide an update for the Constituent Authorities on the Joint Committee’s governance 
arrangements and budgetary position for 2019/20.   The report contains recommendations 
for amendments to the Committee’s Arrangements document following the governance 
review. 
 

 
1. INTRODUCTION 
 

 In recent months the Joint Committee has reviewed and updated its governance 
arrangements in the light of experience since its establishment in early 2018 and in 
response to changing Government policy and local circumstances.  Some changes 
are required to the Committee’s Arrangements document as a result and these need 
to be formally agreed by the Constituent Authorities.   It is essential that the Joint 
Committee remains: fit for purpose, represents a sustainable way of working into the 
future; and delivers value for the resources committed to it by the Constituent 
Authorities.     
 

 
2. REPORT 

 

Background 
 
2.1    Review of the role and functions of the Joint Committee 
 
2.1.1  The Constituent Authorities have previously agreed one addition to the list of 

delegated functions by giving the Joint Committee the function of agreeing the 
local authorities’ input into the development of the HoSW Local Industrial 
Strategy (LIS).    

 

2.1.2 In addition to the above policy development, the need to review the 
governance arrangements arose from: 

  

 Changes in Government policy away from large devolution ‘deals’ to a 

more targeted dialogue on key themes of relevance to the local authorities 

and partners, eg, housing.  The Joint Committee’s influencing role has 

become increasingly important as recognised by Ministers, local MPs and 

Government officials.     The ambition remains to draw down additional 

functions, powers and funding from Government.  

 The evolution of the Joint Committee’s role from agreeing policy (the 

HotSW Productivity Strategy) to overseeing delivery of the Strategy 

alongside the Local Enterprise Partnership.  

 The developing relationships with other key local partnerships to ensure 
that there are appropriate reporting lines, ie, HotSW LEP Joint Scrutiny 

Page 17

Agenda Item 9



 
  

Committee, Peninsula Transport Board, Great South West, HotSW Local 
Transport Board. 

 
2.13 Accordingly, the Committee has refined its focus into the following areas:  

 

 Strategic policy development 

 Influencing Government / key agencies to achieve direct intervention, 
support, funding and powers 

 Designing and delivering strategic HotSW responses to ‘Government’ 
offers 

 Designing and delivering public sector reform where this will deliver 
improved productivity, eg in health and education 

 Delivering at scale –(beyond what individual councils can achieve) 

 Oversight of the Delivery Plan – working with the HotSW LEP to ensure 
delivery of the HotSW Productivity Strategy.  

 
It is not proposed at this stage to request the delegation of further functions from the 
Constituent Authorities to the Joint Committee.  

 
These refinements to the focus of the Committee have been reflected in 
amendments to the list of functions contained in the Joint Committee’s 
‘Arrangements’ document – see Appendix A attached. 
 
 2.1.4 The subject matter focus for the Joint Committee will fall into the following  

 areas of the Delivery Plan: 
 

 Housing – including bid(s) for strategic housing deal(s) designed, 
submitted and agreed resulting in additional investment into HotSW 

 Major Route Corridor Study agreed and completed 

 Agreed HotSW LIS which meets our transformational objectives  

 Successful engagement plan with MPs / Ministers  

 Successful operational phase of the Brexit work in collaboration with 
Government  

 Preparation for / response to offers of public sector reform to improve 
productivity  

 Agreement and submission of Coastal Communities proposal to 
Government seeking additional Government support for our coastal 
communities 

 Development of the JC’s investment framework required to deliver the 
Productivity Strategy within a new national funding environment. 

 Enable the partners to prepare for and respond to opportunities arising 
from the Comprehensive Spending Review and the Shared Prosperity 
Fund. 

 
 2.2 Joint Committee Political Arrangements 
 
2.2.1 The Committee has agreed to change its meeting arrangements to achieve a 

better balance between formal decision-making meetings (fewer) and more 
opportunities for informal engagement and challenge sessions.    

 

Page 18



 
  

In addition, two informal engagement sessions will be arranged per annum to 
engage relevant Portfolio Holders and Directors on Joint Committee business. 

 
2.3 Joint Committee Management Support Arrangements 
 
2.3.1 Comprehensive management support arrangements have been in place to 

support the partnership (and latterly the Joint Committee) since 2015.   These 
have been recently reviewed and refined.  To minimise direct support costs 
impacting on the Committee’s budget, most of the officer resource is provided 
by the Constituent Authorities on an ‘in-kind’ voluntary basis. In addition, 
Somerset County Council was appointed as the Administering Authority to the 
Joint Committee to support and run the  Joint Committee and its meetings. 
SCC has been paid for undertaking this role from the Joint Committee budget.   
Other direct budget contributions towards the Committee support costs have 
been allocated to refund those Constituent Authorities who have provided 
officer resources for project management capacity and administrative support 
to the Brexit Resilience and Opportunities Group.  

 
2.3.2 The diagram in Appendix B shows the revised management support 

arrangements of the Joint Committee. 
 

The revised arrangements provide for: 
 

 A CEx Executive Group to lead the work of the Joint Committee and to 

include theme leads from the Delivery Plan.  The membership of this 

Group is set out in Appendix B.  

 Use of existing Devon and Somerset Chief Executives’ and Leaders’ 
meetings to support the work of the Committee;  

 1 x joint meeting per annum of the Devon and Somerset Chief Executives. 

 Better alignment of the Joint Committee’s support arrangements with the 
LEP. 

 A Policy and Technical Officer Group of senior policy officers to focus on: 
delivery of the Delivery Plan; monitoring progress/measuring performance; 
and drafting responses to national policy changes.    

 A dedicated and resourced programme management function, (funded 
from the Joint Committee’s budget) to manage Joint Committee business 
on behalf of the CEx Executive Group and in addition to the Administering 
Authority role. This arrangement was initially agreed for 6 months (April to 
Oct 2019) pending a review of the work load. 

 
 

2.5 Joint Committee Budget Position 
 
2.5.1 The Joint Committee remains completely reliant on the Constituent Authorities 

for its budget and there are no obvious sources of additional funding to 
support running costs or delivery of its work programme. 

 
   
 
 

Page 19



 
  

The Joint Committee budget as at the end of March 2019 was as follows: 
 
 

Constituent 
Authorities  
 

Contributions 
– 18/19 
£ 

Expenditure – 18/19 
£ 

 
County Council 
x2 
Unitaries x 2 
Districts / 
National Park 
Authorities x 15 
Underspend 
carried forward 
from Devolution 
Budget 
 

 
10,500 
   
4,000 
  
 1,400 
 
66838 
 

 
40,000 – Administering Authority 
costs (including staffing, venue 
hire, publicity costs) 
16,346 – Brexit admin support 
costs 
9750    – Housing audit  
5000    – Housing conference 
8759     - Transport consultancy  
660       -  Portfolio-holder event 
costs 

Total  116,838 80513 
36,325 (carry forward to 2019/20) 

 
 

2.5.2 The Joint Committee budget covers the costs of running the Committee and 
the work programme.  Contribution levels for each council tier are based on 
population levels.  The Committee agreed earlier this year that a larger annual 
budget was likely to be required to fund work programme priorities in future 
years and approved ‘in principle’ to seek the agreement of the Constituent 
Authorities to double the 2018/19 core contributions as a one-year 
arrangement so giving maximum contributions in 2019/20 of: 

 
County Council - £21,000 
Unitary Council - £8,000 
District Council / National Park Authorities – £2,800 

 
For 2019/20 the Constituent Authorities have been invoiced for 50% of the 
amounts stated above.   A second invoice was to be sent to each Constituent 
Authority for the other 50% in the autumn if the budget proved to be 
insufficient to fund the work required in 2019/20 and only if fully costed work 
programme proposals were available to justify the request.  

 
The overall budget position for 2019/20 is detailed in the table in 4.5.3. There 
are no plans to invoice the Constituent Authorities for the second budget 
contribution for 2019/ 20 because of the need to take stock of the direction of 
the Committee’s work programme following the recent elections and delays in 
progressing discussions with Government as a result of Brexit.  As it stands 
the contributions collected from the Constituent Authorities (£48,600) together 
with the underspend carried forward from 2018/19 (£36,326) totalling £84,926 
is sufficient to cover the planned and anticipated costs for 2019/20 of £60k.    
A key unknown aspect of the work programme is the preparations for Brexit 
and the budget impacts of any work which the Committee may wish to 

Page 20



 
  

commission.   This will be kept under review in the coming months as the 
position becomes clearer.    

 
2.5.3  

Income  £ (,000) 

Constituent Authority contributions  48,600 - committed 
48,600 – in principle 

2018/19 underspend 36,326 

Total 133.5  (of which 48.6k is in principle) 
 

 
 

Expenditure £ ,000 

Administering Authority  
Programme Office 
 
 
 
Brexit Resilience and 
Opportunities Group – officer 
support costs  
 
 
Housing Task Force 
 
Growth Corridor Work  
 
MP/ Ministerial engagement  
 
Brexit work programme 
 
Coastal Communities proposal 
 

20 – committed (for the year) 
10 – committed (April to Sept) 
(Oct to March 2020 tbc but estimated 
at £10k) 
 
10 – in principle (April to Sept) 
 (Oct onwards tbc but estimated at up 
to £10k) 
 
 
Tbc 
 
Tbc 
 
Tbc 
 
Tbc 
 
Tbc 

Total £60k (including anticipated 
commitments detailed above) 

 
 
2.5.4 Further discussions are planned as to how to establish a financially stable 

Joint Committee budget for future years as a pre-requisite to preparing a 
budget proposal for 2020/21 for submission to the Constituent Authorities. 

 
 

3. EQUALITIES IMPLICATIONS 
 

 There are no equalities implications associated with the recommendations.   
 
 
 
 

Page 21



 
  

4. OTHER IMPLICATIONS 

 
Legal Implications 
 

The review of the role and functions of the Joint Committee have taken account of 
the legal framework within which the Joint Committee operates.    
 
Financial Implications 
 

As stated in the report.    
 
Human Resources Implications 
 

As stated in the report.    
 

Risk Management 
 

The key risk to the Constituent Authorities is a Committee without a clear role and 
functions and with unsustainable support arrangements which threaten the security 
and operation of the model.     If the Committee cannot be sustained into the future 
then the momentum already achieved with Government will be at risk and the 
opportunity to realise additional funds, powers and responsibilities from Government 
for the benefit of the HotSW will be severely compromised.  This in turn would 
compromise the ability to deliver the Productivity Strategy. 
 
Other Implications: 
 

 Health and Well-being; Health and Safety; Sustainability; Community Safety; Privacy 
 

No implications.   
 

 
6. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

 Torridge District Council is recommended to approve the amendments (shown 
in red) to the Committee’s list of functions in the Arrangements document – 
Appendix A attached – and to note the updated budget position  for 2019/20. 
 

SUPPORTING INFORMATION 
 
 
 Consultations: Date of Consultation – 

Officers Consulted - 
 Contact Officer:  

 Background Papers: See attached Annex A – Appendix A HotSW Joint Committee 
Arrangements document as agreed by all of the Constituent 
Authorities  
 

See attached Annex A - AppendiB HotSW Joint Committee 
Inter-Authority Agreement as agreed by all of the Constituent 
Authorities 
 

 

Page 22



    

 
 

 

ANNEX A APPENDIX A 
 
HEART OF THE SOUTH WEST (HOTSW) JOINT COMMITTEE – DRAFT 
ARRANGEMENTS 
 
1. Introduction: 
 
1.1 Legal status: The HotSW Joint Committee is a Joint Committee of the local 
authorities listed in 1.5 below that comprise the HotSW area and established under 
Sections 101 to 103 of the Local Government Act 1972 and all other enabling 
legislation to undertake the functions detailed in section 2 of this Agreement. 
 
1.2 Key purpose:  The key purpose of the Joint Committee is to be the vehicle 
through which the HotSW partners will ensure that the desired increase in 
productivity across the area is achieved.   

 
1.3 Aims and objectives:   The aim is to provide a single strategic public sector 
partnership that covers the entire area and provides cohesive, coherent leadership 
and governance to ensure delivery of the Productivity Strategy for the HotSW area.  
The specific objectives of the Joint Committee are to: 
 
(a) Improve the economy and the prospects for the region by bringing together 

the public, private and education sectors; 
(b) Increase our understanding of the economy and what needs to be done to 

make it stronger;  
(c) Improve the efficiency and productivity of the public sector;  
(d) Identify and remove barriers to progress and maximise the opportunities 

/benefits available to the area from current and future government policy.     
 
1.4 Commencement: The Joint Committee will be established in accordance with 
the resolutions of the Constituent Authorities listed below in paragraph 1.5 with effect 
from the Commencement Date (22nd January 2018) and shall continue in existence 
unless and until dissolved by resolution of a majority of the Constituent Authorities. 
 
1.5 Membership:  Each of the Constituent Authorities listed below shall appoint 1 
member and 1 named substitute member to the Joint Committee on an annual basis.  
Each member shall have 1 vote including substitute members.  For the Councils, the 
member appointed shall be that Council’s Leader except in the case of Torridge 
District Council where the member appointed by the Council shall have authority to 
speak and vote on matters on behalf of the Council.   Political balance rules do not 
apply to the Joint Committee membership.    The substitute member shall also be a 
cabinet member where the Council is operating executive arrangements.   For the 
National Park Authorities the member appointed shall have authority to speak and 
vote on matters on behalf of the Authority: 

 Dartmoor National Park Authority   

 Devon County Council   

 East Devon District Council  

 Exeter City Council  

Page 23



    

 
 

 Exmoor National Park Authority  

 Mendip District Council   

 Mid Devon District Council  

 North Devon Council 

 Plymouth City Council 

 Sedgemoor District Council  

 Somerset County Council  

 South Hams District Council   

 South Somerset District Council  

 Torbay Council  

 Taunton Deane Borough Council  

 Teignbridge District Council  

 Torridge District Council    

 West Devon Borough Council  

 West Somerset Council.  
 
1.6 In addition to the Constituent Authorities the partner organisations listed below 
shall each be invited to appoint 1 co-opted representative and 1 named substitute 
co-opted representative to the Joint Committee.   Co-opted members shall not have 
voting rights: 

 Heart of the South West Local Enterprise Partnership (the LEP) 

 NHS Northern, Eastern and Weston Devon Clinical Commissioning Group 

 NHS South Devon and Torbay Clinical Commissioning Group 

 NHS Somerset Clinical Commissioning Group 
 
1.7 The Joint Committee may co-opt further non-voting representatives from the 
private, public and/or voluntary sectors at any time. 
 
1.8 Each appointed member / representative shall remain a member of the Joint 
Committee until removed or replaced by the appointing authority / organisation. 
Appointments to fill vacancies arising should be notified to the Joint Committee 
Secretary as soon as possible after the vacancy occurs. 
 
1.9 Standing Orders / Rules of Procedure:  Outside of the contents of this 
‘Arrangements’ document, the Standing Orders and Rules of Procedure for the Joint 
Committee shall be those contained in the Constitution of the Administering Authority 
to the Joint Committee, subject, in the event of any conflict, to the provisions in the 
Arrangements document taking precedent.    
 
1.10 Administering Authority:  A Council shall be appointed by the Constituent 
Authorities as the Administering Authority for the Joint Committee and shall provide 
legal, democratic services, financial and communications support to the Committee.   
The Joint Committee’s Forward Plan of business and papers for its meetings shall be 
published on the Administering Authority’s website with links provided to the 
websites of the other Constituent Authorities and partner organisations. 

 
 
 

Page 24



    

 
 

 
2. Joint Committee Functions: 

 
2.1  The only delegated function of the Joint Committee relates to the approval of 
the HotSW Productivity Strategy.  All other matters referred to in 2.3 are ‘referred’ 
matters where the Joint Committee will make recommendations to the Constituent 
Authority or Authorities for decision.    Additional delegated or referred functions may 
be proposed for the Joint Committee in the future by the Joint Committee or any of 
the Constituent Authorities, but shall only be agreed if approved by all of the 
Constituent Authorities.    
 
2.2 The principle of subsidiarity will apply to the relationship between the Joint 
Committee, the Constituent Authorities and local Sub-Regional Partnerships with 
decisions being made at the most local and appropriate level on all matters to do 
with the delivery of the Productivity Strategy and in relation to the other functions of 
the Joint Committee. 
 
2.3     The Joint Committee shall: 
 
(a) Develop and agree the HotSW Productivity Plan in collaboration with the LEP. 

 
(b) Ensure delivery of the HotSW Productivity Plan in collaboration with the LEP 

and the Constituent Authorities. 
 

(c) Continue discussions /negotiations with the Government on the possibility of 
achieving devolved responsibilities, funding and related governance 
amendments to assist with the delivery of the Productivity Plan. Joint 
Committee proposals arising from these discussions /negotiations would 
require the formal approval of the Constituent Authorities / Partner Agencies. 
 

(d) Continue discussions / negotiations with the Government / relevant 

agencies to secure delivery of the Government’s strategic infrastructure 

commitments, eg, strategic road and rail transport improvements 

(e) Work with the LEP to identify and deliver adjustments to the LEP’s 
democratic accountability and to assist the organisation to comply with the 
revised (November 2016) LEP Assurance Framework. This includes 
endorsing the LEP’s assurance framework on behalf of the Constituent 
Authorities as and when required. However, this is subject to the 
Framework being formally approved by the LEP’s Administering Authority. 

(f) Ensure that adequate resources (including staff and funding) are allocated 
by the Constituent Authorities to enable the objectives in (a) to (e) above to 
be delivered. 

3. Funding 
 
3.1 The Constituent Authorities shall agree each year and in advance of the start 
of the financial year (except in the year of the establishment of the Joint Committee) 
a budget for the Joint Committee in accordance with a Budget and Cost Sharing 

Page 25



    

 
 

Agreement to cover the administrative costs of the Joint Committee and costs 
incurred in carrying out its functions.  All funds will be held and administered by the 
Administering Authority on behalf of the Constituent Authorities and spent in 
accordance with that Authority’s financial regulations and policies. 
 
3.2 In the Joint Committee’s first year of operation, the budget will be approved by 
the Constituent Authorities on the recommendation of the Joint Committee as soon 
as possible after the establishment of the Joint Committee. 
 
3.3 Joint Committee members’ costs and expenses will be funded and 
administered by the respective Constituent Authority. 
 
 
4. Review of the Joint Committee Arrangements 
 
5.1 The Joint Committee may at any time propose amendments to the 
Arrangements document which shall be subject to the approval of all of the 
Constituent Authorities. 
 
5.2 Any Constituent Authority may propose to the Joint Committee amendments 
to the Arrangements.  Such amendments shall only be implemented if agreed by all 
of the Constituent Authorities on the recommendation of the Joint Committee. 
 
5. Members’ Conduct   
 
5.1     All members of the Joint Committee shall observe the “Seven Principles of 
Public Life” (the ‘Nolan’ principles) and will be bound by their own authority’s code of 
conduct in their work on the Joint Committee. 
 
5.2 Joint Committee members / representatives shall be subject to the code of 
conduct for elected members adopted by the Constituent Authority that nominated 
them to be a Joint Committee member or to the conduct requirements of the 
organisation that appointed them.   This includes the requirement to declare relevant 
interests at formal meetings of the Joint Committee. 
 
6. Requirements of Joint Committee members 
 
6.1   Joint Committee members shall:  
 
(a) Act in the interests of the Joint Committee as a whole except where this would 

result in a breach of a statutory or other duty to their Constituent Authority or 
would be in breach of their Constituent Authority’s Code of Conduct. 
  

(b) Be committed to, and act as a champion for, the achievement of the Joint 
Committee’s aims. 
 

(c) Be an ambassador for the Joint Committee and its work. 
 

Page 26



    

 
 

(d) Attend Joint Committee meetings regularly, work with others to achieve 
consensus on items of business and make a positive contribution to the 
Committee’s work. 
 

(e) Act as an advocate for the Joint Committee in any dealings with their 
organisation including seeking any approvals from their Constituent 
Authority/Partner Organisation to Joint Committee recommendations.  
 

(f) Adhere to the requirements of the ‘Arrangements’ document and maintain 
high ethical standards.   

 
7. Appointment of Chair and Vice-Chair 
 
7.1 The Joint Committee shall elect a Chair and Vice-Chair from amongst the 
voting membership as the first items of business at its inaugural meeting and at each 
Joint Committee Annual General Meeting thereafter.   The appointments shall be 
confirmed by a simple majority vote of Constituent Authority members.  If a deadlock 
occurs between two or more candidates a secret ballot shall immediately be 
conducted to confirm the appointment. If there is still deadlock following a secret 
ballot then a further meeting of the Joint Committee shall be held within 14 days and 
a further secret ballot shall be held to resolve the appointment. 

 
7.2 A vacancy occurring in the positions of Chair or Vice-Chair between Annual 
General Meetings shall be filled by election at the next meeting of the Joint 
Committee.   The person elected will serve until the next Annual General Meeting.    
 
7.3 The Chair and Vice-Chair shall, unless he or she resigns the office or ceases 
to be a member of the Joint Committee and subject to 7.5 below, continue in office 
until a successor is appointed. 
 
7.4 In the absence of the Chair and the Vice-Chair at a meeting, the voting 
members of the Committee present shall elect a Chair for that meeting. 
 
7.5 The Chair or Vice-Chair may be removed by a vote of all of the Constituent 
Authority members present at a meeting of the Joint Committee.   
 
8. Quorum 
 
The quorum for any meeting of the Joint Committee shall be 9 Constituent Authority 
members.    The Chair will adjourn the meeting if there is not a quorum present.   In 
the absence of a quorum, the meeting shall be adjourned to a date, time and venue 
to be agreed by the Chair. 
 
 
9. Voting 

 
9.1 Wherever possible the elected and co-opted members of the Joint Committee 
shall reach decisions by consensus and shall seek to achieve unanimity.    
 

Page 27



    

 
 

9.2 In exceptional circumstances where a formal vote is required, the proposal will 
be carried by a simple majority agreement of the voting members present and voting 
by a show of hands.   The Chair of the Joint Committee shall not have a casting vote 
in the event of a tied vote.   

 
10 Decision making Arrangements 
 
10.1 Only the Joint Committee shall approve the Productivity Strategy.   
 
10.2 The Joint Committee may at any time appoint working groups consisting of 
Joint Committee members and/or co-opted representatives / officers to consider 
specific matters and report back / make recommendations to the Joint Committee. 
 
11 Formal Meeting Arrangements 

 
11.1 The Joint Committee will hold an Inaugural Meeting within 30 days of the 
agreed commencement date and thereafter shall meet on a regular basis as agreed 
by the Joint Committee annually at its Annual General Meeting.  

 
11.2  The Chair or in his/her absence the Vice-Chair, may call a special meeting of 
the Joint Committee following consultation with the Chief Executives’ Advisory Group 
to consider a matter that falls within the Committee’s remit but cannot be deferred to 
the next scheduled meeting, provided that at least ten clear working days notice in 
writing is given to the Joint Committee membership.  
. 
11.3  Formal meetings of the Joint Committee shall normally be held in public, in 
accordance with the Access to Information Rules and the Standing Orders / Rules of 
Procedure of the Administering Authority. 
 
11.4 Meetings of any working groups or task groups established by the Joint 
Committee shall, unless otherwise agreed, be held in private.   
 
12. Who can put items on the Joint Committee’s agenda? 
  
(a)       The Joint Committee itself;            
(b) Any of the members of the Joint Committee appointed by the Constituent 
Authorities 
(c) A Constituent Authority by way of a formal resolution 
(d) The Chief Executives’ Advisory Group 
(e) The Monitoring Officer and / or the Chief Finance Officer of the Administering 
Authority. 
 
13.  Reporting Arrangements 
 
13.1 In addition to any ad hoc reports to the Constituent Authorities, the Joint 
Committee shall supply an annual report of its activities to the Constituent Authorities 
in May of each year. 
 

Page 28



    

 
 

13.2 The Joint Committee shall co-operate with the public scrutiny arrangements of 
the Constituent Authorities.  
  
14 Record of attendance 
 
14.1  All members present during the whole or part of a meeting are asked sign 
their names on the attendance sheets before the conclusion of every meeting to 
assist with the record of attendance. 
 
 
Julian Gale 
Monitoring Officer 
Somerset County Council 
 
6/11/17 

Page 29



   
 

 
 

ANNEX A - APPENDIX B 
 
 

HOTSW JOINT COMMITTEE 
DRAFT INTER – AUTHORITY AGREEMENT 

 
1. Commencement and Duration: 
 
1.1 This Agreement (and the obligation of the Constituent Authorities [CAs]) shall 
take effect on the agreed Commencement Date – 22nd January 2018 - and shall 
continue until the Joint Committee (JC) is dissolved. 
  
2. Formation provisions: 
 
2.1 The CAs agree to form the JC from the agreed Commencement Date and to 
delegate / refer the functions specified to the JC from that date as set out in section 
2.3 of the Arrangements document. 
 
2.1 The JC shall operate in accordance with the Arrangements document and the 
Standing Orders and Rules of Procedure of the Administering Authority.    
 
3. Administering Authority (AA) arrangements 
 
3.1 The AA shall be appointed by resolution of the CAs for a 24 month period (24 
months is considered as appropriate to provide sufficient continuity but also to 
provide the option to rotate the role on a regular basis). 
 
3.2 The AA shall provide: 

 Financial, legal, constitutional and administrative support to the JC and its 
meetings 

 An on-line presence for the JC via the AA website with links to the CAs / 
partner organisations websites. 

 Ensure it has appropriate insurance arrangements in place to cover the AA 
role. 

 
3.3 The AA may resign from the role by giving 6 months’ notice to the CAs. 

  
3.4 The AA may be removed and replaced by a majority vote of the CA members 
at a formal meeting of the JC. 

 
3.5 The JC shall cease to exist in the event that no CA or organisation can be 
identified to undertake the AA role. 
 
4. JC Finance 
 
4.1 The JC’s budgetary arrangements shall be detailed in a budget and cost 
sharing agreement (to be drafted) to be agreed by all of the CAs annually on the 
recommendation of the JC and in advance of the financial year.  The only exception 

Page 30



   
 

 
 

to this will be in the JC’s first year of operation when the JC shall recommend a 
budget and cost sharing agreement to the CAs for approval at the first opportunity 
following its establishment.     
 
4.2 The budget and cost sharing agreement shall cover: 
(a) The responsibilities of the CAs for providing funding for the JC 
(b) The anticipated level of expenditure for the JC for the year ahead 
(c) The cost sharing mechanism to be applied to the CAs 
(d) Details of how the budget will be set and agreed each year 
(e) Who is to be responsible for maintaining financial records on behalf of the JC 

(the ‘accountable body’); 
(f) What financial records are to be maintained; 
(g) What financial reports are to be made, to whom and when; 
(h) What arrangements and responsibilities are to be made for: 

 auditing accounts; 

 insurance including ensuring all partners have sufficient cover; 
(i) How any financial assets held by the JC on behalf of the CA will be 

redistributed to the CAs in the event of the dissolution of the JC or in the event 
of a CA formally withdrawing from the CA. 
 

5. Roles and responsibilities of the CAs 
5.1 The CAs shall: 
(a) Appoint Members and named substitutes to the JC in accordance with the 

‘Arrangements’. 
(b) Undertake to share the costs of the JC in accordance with the budget and 

cost sharing agreement and pay their contribution to the JC to the AA in good 
time. 

(c) Make appropriate arrangements for recommendations of the JC to be 
considered and decisions made by the CA.   

(d) Support the work of the JC by offering services, resources or other ‘in kind’ 
support to assist with JC projects and activities. 

(e) Within the terms of the Inter-Authority Agreement, agree to share information 
to support the work of the JC.   

 
6. Chief Executives’ Advisory Group  
 
6.1 The Group shall: 
(a) Ensure that the JC fulfils its functions and responsibilities and in accordance 

with all legal and constitutional requirements. 
(b) Plan and co-ordinate the JC’s activities to ensure the achievement of its aims 

and objectives 
(c) Consider the performance and effectiveness of the JC on an on-going basis 

and make recommendations for changes for consideration by the JC and CAs 
as necessary. 

(d) Ensure that professional advice is available and provided as necessary to the 
JC to enable it to carry out its functions.  

(e) Rigorously monitor and scrutinise the JC’s budget. 

Page 31



   
 

 
 

(f) Consider disputes between the CAs over the application or interpretation of 
this Agreement together with any potential breaches of this Agreement. 

 
 
7. Withdrawal from / dissolution of the JC 
 
7.1 A CA wishing to withdraw from the JC shall give a minimum of 6 months' 
notice in writing to the other CA via the AA.  The CAs shall co-operate with any such 
request.  
  
7.2 If two or more CAs give notice of withdrawal from membership of the JC in the 
same Financial Year, the JC shall consider and make recommendations to the 
remaining CA as to the future operation of the JC and, if appropriate, recommend 
any necessary amendments required to the JC’s functions and operating 
arrangements.  
 
7.3  Where a majority of the CAs at any time agree (via formal resolutions) that the 
JC should be dissolved or terminated on a specified date then the JC shall cease to 
exist from that date.   
 
8. Accounts, Audit and Reporting arrangements 
 
8.1 The AA’s accounts and audit arrangements will apply to JC business. 
  
8.2 The AA will ensure appropriate reporting arrangements are in place for the 
JC.  
 
9. Review of Inter-Authority Agreement 

 
9.1 At any time one or more of the CAs may seek a review of this agreement and 
the operation of the JC by giving notice to the CAs via the AA. 

  
9.2 The review shall be undertaken by the Chief Executives Advisory Group for 
report to the JC.  Any recommendations for changes to the agreement from the JC 
shall only be implemented if agreed by all of the CAs. 
 
10. Insurance, Indemnities, and Conduct of Claims 
 
10.1 The JC as a scrutiny and policy making group rather than a commissioning 
body undertakes administrative functions and therefore carries relatively little risk. 

 

10.2 Each authority’s insurance cover will automatically extend to provide 
protection for their members and officers participating in the work of the JC and in 
their capacity as officers or members of that authority. 
 
 
 
 

Page 32



   
 

 
 

11. Information Sharing, Data Protection, Confidentiality, Publicity and 
Freedom of Information (FOI) Requests 

 
11.1 The CA shall share information about their organisations where that 
information is relevant to the aims and objectives of the JC. 
 
11.2 Where such information is confidential or privileged, for example for reasons 
of commercial, customer or client confidentiality, the CA concerned shall seek to 
provide the information in such as form as to assist the JC whilst maintaining 
confidentiality, for example by the use of statistical and other non-identifiable forms 
of data.   If confidential information is provided by a constituent authority to assist the 
work of the JC, then each CA will respect that confidentiality and shall not use or 
disclose such information without the permission of the authority that provided the 
information.  

 
11.3 In respect of FOI requests, the AA will ensure that the requirements of the FOI 
Act 2000 are met in respect of the activities of the JC.  In particular the AA will 
consult the officers of the CA as necessary regarding any potentially contentious 
enquiries and will then respond to them accordingly on behalf of the JC. 
 
11.4 The JC and the CAs shall at all times abide by the requirements of the Data 
Protection Act. 

 
11.5 A CA shall not make any public statement or issue any press release or 
publish any other public document relating to, connected with or arising out of the 
work of the Joint Committee without obtaining the other CAs’ prior approval as to 
the contents thereof and the manner of its presentation and publication. 
 
12. Promoting Equality, Diversity and Social Inclusion 
 
12.1 All CAs will support and promote the principles of inclusiveness and equality 
for all through the work of the JC. 
 
13. Extent of obligations and further assurance 
 
13.1 Nothing in this Agreement is to require any of the CA to act in any way that is 
inconsistent with its obligations or duties as a local authority. 
 
14. Variations of the Agreement 
 
14.1 Subject to the express provisions of this Agreement, no variation of this 
Agreement will be valid or effective unless agreed by formal resolution of all of the 
CA.  
 
15. Dispute Resolution / Breach of this Agreement 
 
15.1 In the event of a dispute arising from the interpretation and operation of this 
Agreement or a breach of this Agreement by any CA or JC member, the matter shall 

Page 33



   
 

 
 

first be considered by the Chief Executives’ Advisory Group.  The Group shall seek 
to resolve the matter by discussion and mutual agreement and report to the JC and 
CA as necessary. 
 
15.2 Where this fails to achieve a resolution, then the JC may give formal 
consideration to further action.  Such action may include: 
 
(a) A request to a CA to replace a JC member; 
 
(b) A request to a CA to withdraw from the JC; 
 
(c) A recommendation to the other CAs for the termination of the participation of 

a CA. 
 
 
 
Julian Gale 
Monitoring Officer 
Somerset County Council 
 
6/11/17 

Page 34



APPENDIX A – EXTRACT FROM THE JOINT COMMITTEE’S ARRANGEMENTS 
DOCUMENT 

 
2. Joint Committee Functions: 

 
2.1 The only delegated functions of the Joint Committee relate to: 

 
(a) the approval of the HotSW Productivity Strategy; and 
(b) the development and endorsement of the HotSW Local Industrial Strategy (LIS) 

(noting that final approval of the HotSW LIS rests with the HotSW Local Enterprise 
Partnership (LEP) and the Government. 
 
All other matters referred to in 2.3 below are ‘referred’ matters where the Joint 
Committee will make recommendations to the Constituent Authority or Authorities for 
decision.    Additional delegated or referred functions may be proposed for the Joint 
Committee in the future by the Joint Committee or any of the Constituent Authorities 
but shall only be agreed if approved by all of the Constituent Authorities.    

2.2 The principle of subsidiarity will apply to the relationship between the Joint 
Committee, the Constituent Authorities and local Sub-Regional Partnerships with 
decisions being made at the most local and appropriate level on all matters to do with 
the delivery of the Productivity Strategy and in relation to the other functions of the 
Joint Committee. 

2.3     The Joint Committee shall: 

(a) Develop and agree the HotSW Productivity Plan in collaboration with the LEP. 

 

(b) Maintain oversight of the HotSW Delivery Plan = working alongside and in 

collaboration with the LEP using each other’s strengths and roles to ensure delivery 

of the HotSW Productivity Strategy. 

 

(c) Continue discussions /negotiations with the Government and Government agencies 

to achieve direct intervention, support, funding and powers to the benefit of the 

HotSW and assist with the delivery of the Productivity Plan and the LIS, working with 

the LEP.  

 
(d) Continue discussions / negotiations with the Government / relevant agencies to 

secure delivery of the Government’s strategic infrastructure commitments, eg, 
strategic road and rail transport improvements. 

(e) Design and deliver the strategic HotSW response to ‘Government’ offers and 
respond to Government calls for evidence if appropriate. 

 
(f) Design and deliver public sector reform where this will deliver improved productivity 

to the HotSW, eg health, education. 
 

(g) Deliver at scale (beyond what individual councils can achieve). 
 

(h) Work with the LEP to identify and deliver adjustments to the LEP’s democratic 

accountability and to assist the organisation to comply with the revised (November 

2016) LEP Assurance Framework. This includes endorsing the LEP’s assurance 

framework on behalf of the Constituent Authorities as and when required. 

However, this is subject to the Framework being formally approved by the LEP’s 

Administering Authority. 

(i) Ensure that adequate resources (including staff and funding) are allocated by the 
Constituent Authorities to enable the objectives in (a) to (e) above to be delivered. 

Page 35



Page 36


	Agenda
	2 Council Minutes
	Minutes

	8 Treasury Management Report
	8a - Appendix 1 - Treasury Management Outturn 2018-19.v1
	8b - Appendix 2 - Loans to Local Enterprises  2019-20

	9 Hotsw Joint Committee Governance Review Report
	Annex A - Appendix A
	Annex A - Appendix B
	APPENDIX A attached to report
	APPENDIX B attached to report


